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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited (the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended 31 March 2024, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion on 05 September 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
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BSR &Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 37(vi)(a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit
report that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 37(vi)(b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
| guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

i) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, however, the feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility has not been enabled. Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit trail feature
of the said software.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

wopd G DD

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 20 September 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060573BKFGPL4186
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper

B)

(i) (b)

(c)

(d

(e)

(ii) ()

(b)

records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant
and Equipment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically
verified by the management during the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end,
written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of
receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks
or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company except as
follows:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

Quarter Name of Particulars Amount as | Amount as Amount of Whet
bank per books | reported in difference her
of account the (Rs in | retur
(Rs in | quarterly | Thousands) ni/sta
Thousand return/ teme
s) statement nt
(Rs in subs
Thousand eque
s) ntly
rectif
ied
Inventories 40,534 53,749 (13,215) No
Jun-23
Inventories 84,246 102,082 (17,836) No
Sep-23
Inventories 99,609 114,468 (14,859) No
Dec-23
HDFC
Bank Inventories 62,877 58,676 4,201 No
Mar-24
Jun-23 Trade 32,871 34,638 (1,767) No
receivables
Sep-23 Trade 85,501 87,269 (1,768) No
receivables
Dec-23 Trade 66,319 68,088 (1,769) No
receivables
Mar-24 Trade 44,541 47,170 (2,629) No
receivables

(iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, The Company has made investments in other parties, in respect
of which the requisite information is as below. The Company has not made any investments in
companies, firms or limited liability partnership. According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties
during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company with respect to any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

given to us the Company has made investments to any other entity as below:

Particulars Investmens
(Rs in Thousands)

Aggregate amount during the year 22,655
Others*
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 22,655
Others*

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during
the year.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act"). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
manufactured by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

®

) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xi)

(xiii)

Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under
the Act. Further, the Company did not have any associates or joint ventures (as defined under
the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act). Further, the Company did not have any associates
or joint ventures (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is nota Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is
not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the Act. However, the
Company has an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its
Page 8 of 12



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

business except that internal audit has only been completed for part of the year.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have more than
one CIC.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 164,207 thousands in the current financial year
and Rs 139,017 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and there were no issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any

“) guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

/f’

ﬁwﬁ Coromt AL,

£ Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 20 September 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060573BKFGPL4186
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Aequs Consumer
Products Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024 (Continued)

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

/"

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 20 September 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060573BKFGPL4186
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087

Balance Sheet

(All amounts are in ¥ thousands. except share and per share data. unless otherwise stated)
As at As at
Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and cquipment 4 (i) 156,784 185,332

Right of usc assets 4 (i) 587.619 202,145
Capila! work-in-progress 4 (i) 1,722,700 6,955
Intangible assets 4 (iv) 565 695
Financial assets
Investments S (i) 41,200 42,983
Other financial assets 5{vi) 58,938 31115
Income tax assets 6A 910 -
Other non-current assets 6(1) 96.505 22.111
Total non-current assets 2,665,221 491,536
Current assets
Inventories 7 62,877 40,925
Financial assets
Investments 5(i) 22,655 -
Trade receivables 5(nit) 44,541 50,333
Cash and cash equivalents 5(iv) 125,781 10,407
Other bank balances 5(v) 33,370 7,900
Other financial assets 3(vi) 57 3,200
Income tax assets 6A . 403
Other current assets 6(ii) 718.833 67.941
Total current assets 1,008,114 181.109
Total assets 3,673,335 672.645
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital L] 653,719 368,518
Other equily 9 1.223.172 {108.285)
Total equity 1,876.891 260.233
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10¢i) 619,295 48,946
Lease liabilities 12 572,428 176,202
Other financial liabilities 10(in) 41,190 37,445
Employee benefil obligations 14 4.900 3.079
Total non-current liabilities 1.237.813 265.672
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10¢1) 18911 32,591
Lease liabilities " 12 23,628 7.011
Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 10(ii) - S
(b) Tolal outstanding ducs other than (a) above 10(i) 119.042 50,197
Other financial liabilities 10¢ii) 345365 50.374
Employee benefit obligations 14 6,636 2,507
Contract liabilities 13 38,867 1,636
Other liabilities 1 6.182 2424
‘Total current liabilities é_:i&.&.%l 146,740
Total liabilities 1.796,444 412412
Total equity and liabilities 3,673,335 672.645
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements
This 1s the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For BSR & Co. LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 101248W/W-100022 ( W M,V
! - ' s

Sambhram Pie

Sampad Guoha Thakurta \ Suraj Hukkeri Dinesh Iyer -
Partner Director Dircctor Company Secretary
DIN: 09536262 DIN 09513485 M No A31429

Memberskip No 060573

Placa: Chennai Rlage. Belaga: i Place; Belagavi Place: Belagavi

Date: éé'f)t"*be‘( 2@} Z‘D)’L' Date: Scptember 20, 2024 Date: September 20, 2024 Date: September 20, 2024
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087

Statement of Profit and Loss
(Al amounts are in ¥ thousands, excepi share and per share data, wnless otherwvise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
' March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue [rom operations 15 311,690 299,385
Other [ncome 16 20.815 (222)
Total income (A) 332,505 299.]_6_3_
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 17 260,637 231,322
Purchases of stock-in-trade 17A . 16,347
o . . . 2 5397
Changes in inventories of wark in progress, finished goods and stock-in-trade L (12.833) ( )
Employec benefit expenscs 19 97,472 50,522
Net impairment losses on linancial assets 20A 419 .
Other expenses 20B 114.481 120,981
Total expenses (B) 460,176 413,775
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (A-B) (127,671) (114,612)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 57,176 36,654
Finance cost (net) 22 73.669 25.872
Loss before exceptional item and tax (258.516) {177.138)
Exceptional items
Impairment loss investmenls 23 1.783
Loss before tax (260,299} (177.138)
Income tax expense
- Current tax -
- Deferred tax -
Total tax expense
Loss for the year (260.299) (177.138)
Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 14(in) (503) (837)
- Income tax relating 1o these items . -
Other comprehensive loss for the year (503) {837)
‘Total comprehensive loss for the year (260,802) (177.975)
Eamings per share(basic and diluted) 31 (4 635) (654)
[Nominal value per share 10 (March 31, 2023 ZI10)]
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

had Tha

Sampad Gu kurta Suraj Hukkeri Dinesh lyer Sambhram Pise

Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No . 060573 DIN: 09536262 DIN: 09515485 M No A31429
Place: C_hennal Place: Belagavi Place: Belagavi Place. Belagavi

Date: J)L‘?,F }(”r.:\,\.hz/‘ 20} 9:0')—-") Date: September 20, 2024 Date: September 20, 2024 Date September 20. 2024
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

(A amionents are i T Hinusareds. except shure and

or share data, e s othera

e wiatteal)

CIN LU'28995KA2019PTC 129087

A. Equity share capital
Note Amount

Balance as at April 1, 2022 193,349
Changes during the year 8 175.169
Balance as at March 31, 2023 368.518
Changes dunng the year ] 285,201
Balance as at March 31, 2024 653,719
3. Other equity

Reserves and surplus Canpital Reserve

. Share
. . Common i
Reta!n:d Secur.mes Control Capital optmnf Other reserves Total other equity
carnings | premium outstanding
Reserve
account

Balance as at April 01, 2022 (74,650) 7,733 7,609 180 5,063 (54,045)
Loss for the year (177.138) - - - - {177,138}
Oiher comprehensive income/(1nss) (837) . - - - (837
Tatal comprehensive loss for the vear {177.975) - - - - (177.975)
Transactions with owners of the Company
Premium received on shares issued during the 68,814 68.814
year
Share issue expenses . (2,712 - - (2.712)
Total cantributions and distributions . 66,102 - - - 66.102
Finance puarantee received dunng the year . - - - 56,386 56,386
Employee stock oplion expenses - B - 2117 - 2117
Common contral business combinarion - - (370} - - -870
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (252,623) 73,855 6,739 2,297 61,449 (108,285)
I.oss for the year (260.299) - (260.299)
Other comprehensive income#(loss) (303) . - - (303)
Total comprehensive loss for the vear (260.802) - . - - (260.802)
Transactions with owners of the Company
Premiwn received on shares issued during the - 1.069.799 . - - 1,069,799
year
Share 15sue expenses - {4.4241) - - (4.424)
Taotal contributions and distributions - 1,065375 - - - 1.065.375
Finance guaranlee reccived during the year . - - 525134 525,134
Emplovee stock option expenses - - - 1.749 - 1.749
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (313,427 1.139.230 6.739 4.046 586.583 1.223.172

Summary of material accounting policies (nole 2)

The accompanying notes are an imepral part of these financial slatements
This 1s the Statement of Chanpes in Equity referred 1o 10 our report ol even dale

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

A
Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Membership No 060573

Place: Chennai

Da‘e;fé/;) Minber 29 2024

Firm Registration -'\'umhxl 101248 W/W-100022

For and on behal

Surai Hukkeri

Director
DIN: 09536262

Pla

ce: Belagavi

Date: Seplember 20, 2024

the Board of Dircctors

inesh Iver
Director
DIN: 09515485

Place Belapavi
Dale: Septamber 20, 2024

Sambhram Pise
Company Secretary
MNo A31429

Place Belapavi
Daie: September 20, 2024



Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC 129087
Statement of Cash Flows

(All amounts are m 3 thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flow from operating activities :
Loss before income tax from continuing operations (260,299) (177,138)
Profit / (Loss) before tax from discontinuing operations . -
(Loss) before tax (260,299) (177,138)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 57,176 36,654
Employee stock compensation expense 1,748 2,117
Loss/(Profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment / [nvestment property (208) -
Finance income (14,512) (2,625)
Liabilities no longer required written back (927) -
Loss allowance on trade receivables 419 -
Bad debts written off 131 ,
Finance cost 73,669 23,192
Provision for slow moving Inventory 7,339 13,254
Finance Guarantee Expense - 5,305
Unrealised exchange (gain) or loss (2,181} 38
Impainment on investments 1,783 =
Balances written off 976 -
Provision for doubtful advances 1,561 -
Loss on derecognition of lease - 1,639
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in
- trade receivables 5318 (29,337)
- mventones (29,291) (29,281)
- other financial assets 24294 (7,870)
- non current assets (74,394) 32,983
- other current assets (119,805) (68,058)
Increase / (Decrease) in
- trade payables 71,876 37,127
- employee benefit obligations 5.447 4,190
- other financial liabilities 3,896 35907
- other liabilities 3,760 538
- contract liabilities 37,231 1,636
Cash generated / (used in) from operations (204,993) (119,729)
[ncome taxes received / (paid) (507) -
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities (A) (205,500) (119,729)
Cash flow from Investing Activities :
Payments for property, plant and equipment (1,473,598) (186.656)
Proceeds from sale of investment property / PPE 1,510 -
Investment in subsidiaries - (40,001)
Investment in Mutual Funds (19,077) -
Interest received 9305 225
Investment in Fixed Deposits (25.470) (4,100)
Net cash inflow /(outflow) from investing activities (B) (1,507,330) (230,532)
Continued...

Aequs Internal-Strictly this data should remain with Aequs
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087
Statement of Cash Flows
(A1l arnounts are in T thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Period ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from [ssue of Shares 1,340,000 241271
Share issuc expenscs (4,424) B
Proceeds from Long term borrowing ) 836,654 84,826
Repayment of Long term borrowing (314,463) (8.979)
Loan repaid 1o retated party (5,000) (46.500)
Loan availed from related party 15,000 24,000
Proceeds /(repayments) of lease Liability (8,011) (5,652)
Procesds /(Repayment) from short term borrowing (net) (11,1935) 12,968
Interest paid {20,357} (21.622)
Net cash from /(used in) financing activities (C) 1,828,204 280,312
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 115,374 (69,948)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,407 80.356
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 125,781 10,407
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flows.
Cash and cash equivalents |Refer note 5(iv)} 125,781 10,407
Balance as per Statement of cash flows 125,781 10,407
Summary of material accounting policies (note 2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these {inancial statements
This is the statement of cash flows referred to n our report ot even date
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accounlanls
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022 /
A b L
Sampad Guha Thakurta . s Suraj Hukkeri Dinesh Iyer Sambhram Pise
Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No : 060573 DIN 09536262 DIN: 09515485 M No A31429
Place: Chennai Place: Belagavi Place: Belagavi Place: Belagavi

Date (62 ‘1‘» }t?ew)pe ' 2_\; ) ')4’) j— L' Date: September 20, 2024 Date: September 20, 2024 Date: September 20, 2024



Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in < thousands, except share and per share data, unlesy otherwise stated)

1. Background

Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on October 25, 2019 under the Companies Act 2013, in India and became a wholly
subsidiary of Aequs Private Limited in December 2021. The Company is engaged in the business of contract manufacturing of kitchen and home appliances. The
comimercial operations of the Company started in February, 2021

The Company is establishing a Manufacturing facility in Hubballi Durable Goods Cluster, Itigatti Dharwad, Kamnataka

During the year ended March 31, 2023, pursuant to slump sale agreement dated November 30, 2022 the Company has acquired business of it's subsidiary Aequs
Home Appliances Private Limited. The Company has set up a new plant at Hubballi and has relocated its operations from Bengaluru during March 2023

2. Material accounting policies:
This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
«  certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value;

*  share-based payments; and

» defined benefit obligations

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the
‘Rules') which amends certain accounting standards, and were effective April 1, 2023. The Rules predominantly amended Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS [,
Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications. These amendments did

not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods

(iv) Operating cycle
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabililies as current and non-current. ,

(v) Accounting policy on EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on Division 11 -Ind AS Schedule 111 to the Companies Act 2013, the Company has elected to present eamings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis
of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax

expense

(vi) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the
functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All amounts

have been rounded to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise indicated.

b) Going concern assumption

The Company has incurred loss of 2 260,299 for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 2 177,138) and has accumulated losses of 513,427 as at that
date (March 31, 2023: 2 252.625), Nolwithstanding accumulated losses, as on March 31, 2024, the net worth of the company is Z 1,876,891 (March 31, 2023: %
260,233) and its current assets exceed its current liabilities by Z 449,482 (March 31, 2023: % 33,966). The management of the Company believes that the
Company will be able to continue to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future and meet all its liabilities as they fall due for payment based on its future
cash flow projection and support letter from the ultimate parent

(¢) Foreign currency translations transactions and balances

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency (ransactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dales of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement
of profil and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other
income

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC 129087
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in T thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount thal reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services

Sale of goods

The Company supplies kitchen and home appliances, against purchase orders placed by its customers. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally as per the Inco terms. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured
at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that perfornance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable
consideration, if any. The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of goods or services to the customer and payment
by the customer exceeds one year. Accordingly, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for time value of money

As a practical expedient, the Company has opted not to disclose the information in respect of performance obligations that are a part of contracts that has an
original expected life of one year or less.

The Company collects Goods and Service Tax on behalf of the government, and therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they
are excluded from revenue

A contract asset is recognized when the Company gets the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that it has transferred to the customers and the
right is conditional upon acts other than passage of time.

When the payment exceeds the value of goods supplied or services rendered, a contract liabilily (advance from customer) is recognized

(e) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabililies attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred tax is provided, using the asset and liability approach, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacled by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a lepally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority, Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

(f) Leases

The Company as a Lessee

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

. Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable

»  Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

*  Amounts expected to be payable by the entity under residual value guarantees

»  The exercise price of a purchase option if the entity is reasonably certain to exercise that option

= Payments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease tenm reflects the Company exercising that option,

Lease payments to be mnade under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company. the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of inlerest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period

Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising of the following:

«  The ammount of the initial measurement of lease liability

*  Any lease payments made on or betore the commencement date less any lease icentives received

= Any initial direct cost

. Restoration cost

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying assel’s useful life

Payment associated with short-term lease of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss
Short tennl}ﬂ}..-s’nm -'lscs\\\ith a lease tenm of 12 months or less
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in € thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

g) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company does not have goodwill or any other intangible assets with indefinite useful life. Other assets are depreciated over estimated useful life and are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impainment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impainment at the end of each reporting period

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

(i) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised at
transaction price. initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financial components, when they are recognised at
fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

(i) Inventories

Raw materials, stores and spares, work in progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods

Raw materials, stores and spares, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials, stores and
spares and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in- progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Stock-in trade is valued at cost of
purchase. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned (o
individual items on weighted average basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates, refundable taxes and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

(K) Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
The Company measures its investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27
The management assesses the performance of these entities including the future projections, relevant economic and market conditions in which they operate to
identify if there is any indicator of impairment in the camrying value of the investments. In case indicators of impairment exist, the impairment loss is measured the
higher of
(i) “fair value less cost of disposal’ determined using market price information, where available, and
(ii) “value-in-use’ estimates recoverable amounts

determined using discounted cash flow projections, where available. The fair value less costs of disposal is determined using the market approach. The
future cash flow projections are specific to the entity based on its business plan and may not be the same as those of market participants. The future cash flows
consider key assumptions such as revenue projections, EBITDA, terminal growth rates, etc. with due consideration for the potential risks given the current
economic environment in which the entity operates. The discount rates used with required tax rates based on weighted average cost of capital and reflects market’s
assessment of the risks specific to the asset as well as time value of money. The recoverable amount estimates are based on judgments, estimates. assumptions and

market data as on reporting date and ignore subsequent changes in the economic and market conditions

(I) Investments and other financial assets

(i)  Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

= those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

«  those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments
(not held for trading purpose), this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income

(i) Initial recognition

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and
liabilities (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component) are recognised at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition

(iti) Subsequent measurement

(a) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method
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(1) Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(b) Fuir value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,

where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCL Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/ (losses) Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other expenses and impairment expenses in other expenses

(¢) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCT| are measured at
fair value through profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

»  The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
«  retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a coniractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more

recipients

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity Company not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the financial asset is not derecognised

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(v) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, Note 26 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables

(vi) Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is disclosed as interest income within finance income. Interest income from financial
assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss using the effective interest rate
method

(vii) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

(iv) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from
the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

(x) Financial Guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of the (i) amount detenmined in accordance with the expected credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 and the amount initially recognised
less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the prnciples of Ind AS 115. The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligation

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as contributions and

recognised as part of the cost of the investments

(m) Property, plant and equipment:

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost applied on transition to Ind AS less depreciation, Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separalte asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss

during the reporting period in which they are incurred

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives
The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

[Asset Management Useful life as per Schedule [1
assessment  of useful
Leasehold improvement 10 veirs or lease period.|Not Applicable
whichever is lower.
Plant and machinery 11010 vears 8to 15 years
Computers 210 3 years 3 to 6 years
Fumniture and fittings — I 1o 5 years 10 years
Office equipment A % 1 10 5 veurs 5 vears
T
2] \
i
m )
8 / /
\ — /
Xeii ’
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The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management which are different from those specified by Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period

Other property, plant and equipinent are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use. An asset's carrying amount is wrilten down immedialely (o its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are detennined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in statement of
profit and loss within other gains/losses. When significant spare parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (inajor components) of property, plant and equipment,

(n) Intangible assets
An intangible asset shall be measured initially at cost. Intangible assets include Computer software. Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are

recognised as an expense as incurred.
The Campany amortises intangible assets with finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Useful life adopted l.)y Useful life as per Schedule II (in
Asset the Company (in
years)
vears)
Computer Software 2-10 vears Not applicable

(0) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised

initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

(p) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Where there is a breach of a matenial provision of a long-tenn loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that
the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period

and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach

(q) Borrowing costs

General and specific bortowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred

(v) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessinents of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognised as an interest expense

(r) Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Leave obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet since the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur
(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment scheines:

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuily; and

(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund and Employee State Insurance (ESI)
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Gratuity obligations:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation

The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an assel to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

(iv) Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees through the Aequs Stock Option Plan introduced by Aequs Private Limited. The cross charge of
these expenses are recognised as a part of Employee benefit expenses.

(y) Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
securities premium

(z) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic eamnings/ (loss) per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company

» by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted eamings/ (loss) per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take into account:

. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

»  the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

(s) Rounding off norms adopted by the Company

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded to nearest thousands as per the requirement of Schedule Il of Companies Act,
2013, unless otherwise stated. Amount mentioned as 0" in the financial statements denote amounts rounded-off, being less than 2 500 and amount mentioned as "
" in the financial statements denotes 2 Nil amount.

3. Estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent liabilities in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limited
to useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, share-based compensation, defined benefit obligations, Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and Estimation of deferred tax expenses/benefits. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates

(This space 1s intentionally left blank)




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in T thousands, except share and per share data. unless otherwise stated)

CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087

4 (i) Property. plant and equipment
. Leasehold Plant and Computer Office Furniture &|
Particulars . . . X Total
Improvement machinery equipment equipment Fixtures

Cost
As at April 01, 2022 740 63,079 1,177 1,352 101 66,449
Additions 1,001 141,644 1,560 2,280 92 146,577
Disposals - - - - -

As at March 31, 2023 1,741 204,723 2,737 3,632 193 213,026
Additions - 9,262 - 103 - 9,365
Disposals - (1,574) = (209) = (1,783)
As at March 31, 2024 1.741 212,411 2,737 3,526 193 220,608
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 87 6,344 343 460 53 7,287
Charge for the year 210 18,776 546 624 51 20,207
Disposals = = - = 3 =
As at March 31, 2023 297 25,120 889 1,084 104 27,494
Charge for the year 319 34,801 833 787 71 36,811
Disposals - (414) - (67) - (481)
As at March 31, 2024 616 59,507 1,722 1,804 175 63.824
Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 1.444 179.603 1.848 2.548 89 185.532
As at March 31, 2024 1,125 152,904 1,015 1,722 18 156,784

4 (ii) Capital work in progress (CWIP)

Particulars Total
As at April 01, 2022 3,834
Additions 6,955
Transfers (3,834)
As at March 31, 2023 6,955
Additions 1,715,745
Transfers -
As at March 31, 2024 1,722,700
Note: Capital work in progress mainly comprises of plant and machinery under installation
(1) Ageing of Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2024

Amounts in CWIP for the period of

Particulars Less Than one 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total

vear years
(1) Project In Progress 1.722.700 - - - 1,722,700

Total 1,722,700 - - - 1.722.700

(b) Ageing of Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2023
Amounts in CWIP for the period of

Particulars Less Than one 12 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total

year YEATS

(1) Project In Progress 6.955 - - 6.955

Total 6.955 - - - 6,955

Notes:

a There are no projects whose completion is overdue or exceeded its cost compared Lo its original plan at the end of the year or previous year

b. The Company is setting up new manufacturing facility and capitalised borrowing costs amounting to % 72,655 thousands during the year
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4 (iii) Right of use assets

Particulars

Factory Building Total
Gross Block
As at April 01, 2022 11,476 11,476
Additions 213,994 213,994
Disposals (11,476) (11.476)
As at March 31, 2023 213,994 213,994
Additions 427,399 427,399
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 641,393 641,393
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 3,687 3,687
Charge for the year 16,310 16,310
Disposals (8.148) (8.148)
As at March 31, 2023 11,849 11,849
*Charge for the year 41,925 41,925
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 53,774 53.774
Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 202,145 202,145
As at March 31, 2024 587,619 587,619

* Depreciation of right-of-use assets includes an amount of Z 21,722 (March 31, 2023:2Nil) which has been capitalized and taken to CWIP

(a) Lease liability

March 31, 2023

Present value of lease payments

Particulars March 31, 2024
Current 23,628 7,011
Neon-current 572.428 176.202
Total 596,056 183,213
(b) Company's lease liabilities, by maturity, are as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than one year 85,592 24 824
Between one and five years 387,359 144,028
After five years 497,238 123.736
Total minimum lease payments 970.189 292,588
Less: imputed interest 374.132 109,375
596,057 183,213

(¢ )The following are the amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss :

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Cash outflow for leases (principal and interest)

*Depreciation of right-of-use assets 20,202 16,310
Interest expense on lease liabilities 12,599 9,723
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 478 2,126

20,610 15.375

Note:

* Depreciation of right-of-use assets excludes an amount of Z 21,722 (March 31, 2023:3Nil) which has been capitalized and taken to CWIP

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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4 (iv) Intangible assets

FARHEUIAE Computer software Total
Gross Block

As at April 01, 2022 750 750
Additions 220 220
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 970 970
Additions =

Disposals = =
As at March 31, 2024 970 970
Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 01, 2022 138 138
Charge for the year 137 137
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 275 275
Charge for the year 163 163
Disposals (33) (33)
As at March 31, 2024 405 405
Net Block

As at March 31, 2023 695 695
As at March 31, 2024 565 565

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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5 Financial assets

As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
(i) Non-current investments
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted, at cost)
Investment in subsidiary
Aequs Home Appliances Private Limited 50,100 50,100
[5,010,000 (March 31, 2023: 5,010,000) equity shares of 10 each fully paid up]
Less: Provision for impairment (8,900) (7,117)
41,200 42,983
Total Non - Current investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 41,200 42,983
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 8,900 7,117
Current:
(ii) Current investments
Investment in Mutual Funds
Quoted
58,743, 786 Units {March 31, 2023: ¥ Nil) in ABSL Liquid Fund - Growth plan 22,655 -
22,655 -
Total Current investments
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 22,655 -
(iii) Trade receivables (unsecured, considered good)
Trade receivables from contracts with customers - other than related parties 44,960 50,333
Less: Loss allowance 419) -
Total receivables 44,541 50,333
Note: a) Refer note 34 for information on lien/charge against trade receivables
Aging of Trade receivables as on March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from the due date
Particulars Unbilled | Notdue |Lessthan 6| 6 months-| 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Months 1 vear vears
Undisputed Trade Receivables
considered good 385 27.609 14,886 1,661 400 19 - 44,960
Less: Loss allowance - - - - (400) (19) (419)
Total trade receivables 385 27,609 14,886 1,661 - - - 44,541
Aging of Trade receivables as on March 31, 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from the due date
Particulars Unbilled | Notdue |Lessthan 6|6 months- | 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Months 1 vear vears
Undisputed Trade Receivables
considered good 29,644 19,395 1,294 - - 50,333
Total trade receivables - 29,644 19.395 1,294 - - - 50,333
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- In current accounts 18,252 10,398
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 107,526 -
Cash on hand 3 9
125,781 10,407
Note:
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting year and
prior periods
As at As at

(v) Other bank balances

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Margin money deposits 22,950 7,900

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than one year 10,000

Interest accrucd 42U -
33,370 7.900

Note:

Margin money deposits are against Letters of Credit issued in favour of vendors for purchased materials
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(vi) Other financial assets (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise specified)
Non current

Security deposits (Refer note below) 58,938 31,115
58,938 31,115
Current
Receivable from related parties (refer Note 27) 57 2,780
Interest accrued ’ - 420
57 3,200
Note:

Security Deposit includes deposit given to Hubballi Durable Goods Cluster Private Limited(HDGCPL) against
leasehold building ¥ 99,329 (March 31, 2023: ¥ 54,430) which is the gross value of the deposit.

6 Other assets
(i) Non current

Capital advances 73,386 17,362
Prepaid expenses 23,119 4,749
96,505 22,111
(ii) Current

Advance to suppliers 7,630 1,247
Advances to employees 64 91

Unamortized financial guarantee expenses 489,692 -
Prepaid expenses 10,053 3,611
Balances with statutory authorities 212.955 62.992
720,394 67,941

Less : Provision for advances to suppliers considered doubtful (1,561) -
718,833 67,941

6A Income tax assets

Advance tax [net of provision for tax: ¥ Nil (March 31, 2023: Z Nil)} 910 403
910 403

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

7 Inventories

Raw materials 43,866 35,342
Work-in-progress 9,602 12,165
Finished goods 12,846 2,136
Stock-in-Trade - 244
Stores and spares 2478 4.292

68,792 54,179
Less: Provision for slow moving inventories (5,915) (13,254)

62,877 40,925
Notes:

(i) Raw material includes goods in transit amounting ¥ 87 (March 31, 2023: Z 840)
(ii) Raw materials includes packing material amounting % 1,265 [March 31, 2023: ¥ 1,193)
(i1i) Stores and spares includes goods in transit amounting % Nil [March 31, 2023: ¥ 32)
(iv) Provision for slow moving inventory includes provision in respect of:

Raw materials

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stores and spares

(v) Write- down of inventories to net realizable value amounted to 1,039 (March 31, 2023:  658). These were
recognized as an expense during the year and included in changes in value of inventories of finished goods and work-
in-progress, stock-in-trade in Statement of profit and loss.

(vi) Refor note 34 for information on lien/charge against inventories
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8 Equity share capital
(i) Authorised equity share capital

Number of shares Amount
As at April 01, 2021 7,500,000.00 75,000
Increase during the year 18,500,000.00 185,000
As at April 01, 2022 26,000,000.00 260,000
Increase during the year 15.000,000.00 150,000
As at March 31, 2023 41,000,000.00 410,000
Increase during the year 719,000,000.00 7,190,000
As at March 31, 2024 760,000,000.00 7,600,000
(ii) Issued, subseribed and fully paid up equity share capital 45,382.00 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year
36,851,763 (March 31, 2023 :19,334,873) equity shares of Z10 each fully paid up 368,518.00 193,349
Issue of shares during the year
28,520,090 (March 31, 2023: 17,516,890) equity shares of 10 each fully paid up 285,201.00 175,169
65,371,853 (March 31, 2023: 36,851,763) equity shares of 210 each fully paid up 633.719.00 368518
(1) Movement in cquity share capital

. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars =
Number of shares Amount (¥)| Number of shares Amount (%)

At the beginning of the year 36,851,763 368,518 19,334,873.00 193,349
Add: Issued during the year 28,520.090 285.201 17,516,890.00 175,169
Outstanding at the end of the year 65,371,853 653,719 36,851,763.00 368,518

(b) Terms & rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Z10 per share Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In
the event of liquidation of the Company, equity share holders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(c¢)Shares of the Company held by holding/ultimate holding Company

Particulars 45,382.00) March 31, 2023
Aequs Private Limited 65,371,853.00 36.851,763
Total 65.371,853.00 36,851,763

(d) Details of share holders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder umberof eqEiy % holding

shares

As at March 31, 2024
Aequs Private Limited (APL) 65,371,853.00 100%
As at March 31, 2023
Aequs Private Limited (APL) 36.851.763.00 100%

(e) There are no instances of shares allotted as fully paid by way of bonus shares and shares bought back during the current and previous reporting
periods

(0 In May 2023, unsecured loan from APL was converted into equity. Allotment of 810,810 shares pursuant to conversion of loan of ¥ 1,49,99,985
received from APL, issue price is Z 18 50 per share.

(g) There are no shares issued for consideration other than cash during the current year and prior year

(g) Details of sharcholding of promoters:

Numbar of shares Percentage of number of shares DPerecntage
March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 | change during
Aequs Private Limited 65,371,853 36,851,763 100% 1.00 0%

Name of the promoter
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As at As at
9 Other Equity March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(i) Reserves and Surplus
Retained eamings . (513,427) (252,625)
Securities premium 1,139,230 73,855
625,803 (178,770)

(ii) Capital Reserve

Common control capital reserve 6,739 6,739
Share options outstanding account 4,046 2,297
Other reserves 586,584 61,449
597,369 70,485
Total Other Equity 1,223,172 (108,285)

(a) Retained earnings

Retained eamings comprises of prior and current year's undistributed eamings after tax

(b) Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Act 2013

(c) Capital reserve

(i) Common Control Capital reserve

This represents the excess of net assets acquired by the Company over the fair value consideration payable on common control acquisition.

(ii) Share options outstanding account

Share options outstanding account represents the fair value of share options granted to the employees of the Company by Aequs Private Limited,
Holding Company, which will be settled by allotting the shares of the issuer of the options. There is no cross charge that is being done by Aequs Private
Limited with respect to this cost. Based on the assessment carried out by the Management, the impact of the stock options issued to the employee of the
Company is not material, hence the disclosures as envisaged under Ind AS 102 are not made in these financial statements

(iii) Other reserves
Other reserve comprises of amount towards fair value of financial guarantee received from MFRE Private Trust ¥ 7,013 (March 31, 2023: 2 6,113),
Aequs Private Limited % 490,504 (March 31, 2023: 27,668 ) and Aequs SEZ Private Limited : ¥ 89,067 (March 31, 2023: % 27,668)

Other reserve comprises of amount towards fair value of financial guarantee received from various entities within the group (including entities under

common control) against borrowings of the Company for which no consideration is being paid by the Company

Note: For movement in reserves, please refer 'Statement of changes in equity’.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC 129087
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in T thousands, except share and per share data, unless othenvise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
10 Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
Non current:
Term Loan (Secured) 631,943 59,079
Total non-current borrowings 631,943 59,079
Less: Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2,884 369
Less: Current maturities of term loans included in current borrowings 9,764 9,764
Non-current borrowings 619,295 48,946
Current
Working capital facilities from banks (Secured) 6,263 17,458
Loan from related parties (Unsecured) - 5,000
Current maturities of term loans from banks 9.764 9,764
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2,884 369
18,911 32,591
Note:

(a) HDFC Bank: Term loan taken by the Company carries an interest at 1YRS MCLR + 2.50% p.a and is repayable in 60 monthly instalments (including current
mortarium period of 9 months) and is secured by hypothecation of plant & machinery, collateral security over parcel of land & building owned by M/s. MFRE Private
Trust, the personal guarantee of Mr. Aravind Melligeri, Director of Aequs Private Limited and corporate guarantee given by M/s. MFRE Private Trust. AN amount of %
87 (March 31, 2023: % Nil ) has been adjusted against the loan on account of unamortized loan processing charges

(b) Canara Bank: Term loan taken by the Company carries an interest at -Present RLLR 8.30% + 3% CRP over RLLR+0.8% Liquidity premium and is repayable in 8
years 6 months monthly instalments(Including repayment holiday period of 18 months) and is secured by hypothecation of plant & machinery/equipment,
miscellaneous Assets and electrical installation, collateral security over parce! of land & building owned by M/s Aequs SEZ private limited , the personal guarantee of
Mr Aravind Melligeri, Director of Aequs private limited and corporate guarantee given by M/S Aequs SEZ Private Limited and M/S Aequs Private Limited. This term
loan facility closed during the year 23-24

(c ) HDFC Bank: Term loan of Z 2000 million taken by the Company carries an interest 8.95% p.a. {linked to T-bill 3 months) and is repayable in RTL: Door to Door
tenor of [78 months] from the date of first disbursement, moratorium period of [18 months] and repayment period of [21 quarterly repayments], commencing from
March'2025 and ending in March'2030. and is secured by hypothecation of plant & machinery, collateral security over parcel of land & building owned by M/S
Aequs SEZ Private Limited (to the extent of value of Land provided as Collateral), the personal guarantee of Mr, Aravind Melligeri, Director of Aequs Private Limited
and corporate guarantee given by M/S Aequs SEZ Private Limited (to the extent of value of Land provided as Collateral) and M/S Aequs Private Limited An amount
of 2 11,408 (March 31, 2023:  Nil ) has been adjusted against the loan on account of unamortized loan processing charges

(d) Karnataka Bank: Term loan of ¥ 983 74 million taken by the Company carries an interest at 6 M T-bill+2.77%% p.a and i is repayable in RTL: Door to Door tenor
of [78 months] from the date of first disbursement, moratoriurn period of [18 months] and repayment period of [21 quarterly repayments], commencing from
March'2025 and ending in March'2030 and is secured by hypothecation of plant & machinery, collateral security over parcel of land & building owned by M/S Aequs
SEZ Private Limited (to the extent of value of Land provided as Collateral), the personal guarantee of Mr. Aravind Melligeri, Director of Aequs Private Limited and
corporate guarantee given by M/S Aequs SEZ Private Limited (to the extent of value of Land provided as Collateral) and M/S Aequs Private Limited. An amount of ¥
2,367 (March 31, 2023: ¥ Nil ) has been adjusted against the loan on account of unamortized loan processing charges.

(e)Working capital facilities taken by the Company from HDFC bank includes Letter of Credit and Cash Credit (CC). Working capital facilities are secured by
hypothecation of raw material, semi-finished goods, finished goods, existing and future receivables. Collateral security includes, parcel of land and building owned by
M/s. MFRE Private Trust and hypothecation charges on unencumbered plant and machineries and other fixed assets of the Company. Personal guarantee given by Mr
Aravind Melligeri, Director of the holding Company. CC carries interest @ 3T-Bill 3 Months 7.03% + Spread 4.01% p.a

(fy Working capital facilities taken by the Company from Canara Bank includes Letter of Credit and Cash Credit (CC). Working capital facilities are secured by
hypothecation Proposed stock and book debts. Collateral security includes. parcel of land owned by M/s.MFRE Private Trust and hypothecation charges on
unencumbered plant and machineries and other fixed assets of the Company. Personal guarantee given by Mr. Aravind Melligeri, Director of the holding Company
and corporate guarantee given by M/S Aequs SEZ Private Limited and M/S Aequs Private Limited. These working capital facilities are closed during year 23-24

¢) Loan from related party pertains to unsecured loan availed by the Company from Aequs Private Limited INil (March 31, 2023: 5,000 ) with interest @ 12% p.a
These loans are repayable on demand. Loan has been fully repaid during year FY 23-24
(h) The term loans are reduced by Ind AS adjustments for unamortised financial guarantee received amounting to Z Nil (March 31, 2023: % 54,390)

(i) The term loans are reduced by Ind AS adjustments for unamortised transaction cost (loan processing charges) received amounting to 313,862 (March 31, 2023: %
5,186)
(j) The working capital loans was reduced by Ind AS adjustiments for unamortised financial guarantee received amounting to  Nil (March 31, 2023: %581)

(k) Overdraft against third party deposit (FCNR): Overdraft facility is secured primarily by Lien on FCNR deposit. Overdraft facility carry interest rate of 12.15% pa
This facility was utilised and repaid during the current year
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10 Financial liabilities (continued)

1. Inventories

Amount as
Particulars Gross reported in
For the quarter ended Name of |of amount as the Amount of Reason for
bank securities per books | quarterly | difference discrepancies
provided of account | return/

statements
Jun-23 40,534 53,749 (13,215) Refer note (a)
Sep-23 HDFC Bank | inventories 84,246 102,082 (17,836) Refer note (a)
Dec-23 99,609 114,468 (14,859) Refer note (a)
Mar-24 62,877 58.676 4,201 Refer note (b)

Notes:

(a) Provision for inventory not considered in stock statements for the first 3 quarters as per bank requirements
(b) Deviation due to revaluation of inventory during year end book closing process

2. Trade Receivables

Amount as
Particulars ATHROBRE 5 reported in
Name of of v the Amount of |Reason for
For the quarter ended . per books . . .
bank securities quarterly |difference |discrepancies
: of account
provided return/
statements
Jun-23 32,871 34,638 (1,767)
- 85,501 87,269
S HDFC Bank Trad_e ’ ' (1.768) Refer note (a)
Dec-23 receivables 66,319 68,088 (1,769)
Mar-24 44,541 47,170 (2,629)
Note:

(a) Inter Company balances, advances to trade receivables, ECL, forex and unbilled revenue not considered in stock statement
to align with the bank requirements

As at As at
(ii) Trade Payables March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current:
Trade payables
- Dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer note 32) - -
- Others* 119,042 50,197
119,042 50,197

* Others includes payable to related parties amounting to 2 18,827 (March 31, 2023: 2 12,145). Refer number 27 for further details

Aging of Trade payables as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods

Particulars Unbilled Not Due Total

Lesse;hran 1 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than 3 year
(1)Others 21,211 L 97,611 220 - - 119,042
Total 21,211 - 97,611 220 - - 119,042

Aging of Trade payables as at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods

Particulars Unbilled Not Due Total
: SeS[hant 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than 3 year

vear
(i)Others 9,320 5,739 35,030 108 - E
Total 9,320 5,739 35030 108 - -
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(iii) Other financial liabilities
Non Current (carried at fair value)
Deferred business consideration (Refer note 35)

Current (carried at amortized cost)

Capital creditors (refer note 27 for payables to related parties)
Employees related liability

Payable to related parties (refer note 27)

11 Other liabilities
Statutory dues payable

12 Lease liabilities
Non Current:
Lease liabilities
Current:
Lease liabilities

Note: Refer note 4(i1i) for details relating to leases

13 Contract liabilities
Advance from customers
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March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
41,190 37,445
41,190 37,445

294,787 3,691
11,869 2,805
38,709 43,878

345,365 50,374

6,182 2,424
6,182 2,424

572,428 176,202

572,428 176,202
23,628 7,011
23,628 7,011
38.867 1,636
38,867 1.636
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14 Employee benefit obligations
Non-current
Gratuity

Current
Gratuity
Leave obligations

(i) Leave obligations
The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for earned leave

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

4.900 3.079
4,900 3.079

110 67
6,526 2.440
6.636 2,507

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for earmed leave which are classified as other long-term benefits. The amount of provision of ¥
6,526 (March 31, 2023: 2,440 ) is presented as current. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take full

amount of accrued leave or require payment within next 12 months

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plans in the form of provident fund and employees state insurance scheme for qualifying employees. The
coniributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% and to employees state insurance scheme at the rate of 3.25% of basic salary
as per regulations. The contributions are made to a registered provident fund and ESI fund administered by the government. The obligation of the
Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the

period towards defined contribution plans is:

Provident Fund

Employees State Insurance

Total

(i) Post employment obligations
Gratuity

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

6,506 1.244
22 25
6,528 1,269

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018 Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on termination/retirement is the employees last drawn basic
salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is unfunded

The amount recognized in the balance sheet and movements in net defined benefit obligation over the vears are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

Opening defined benefit obligation 3,146 140

Current service cost 1,308 281

Interest cost/(income) 233 10

(a) Total amount recognized in statement of profit or loss 1,541 291

Remeasurements

- return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - N

- {Gains)/losses from changes in demographic assumptions (193) 367

- (Gains)/losses from changes in financial assumptions 193 (233)

- Experience (pains)/losses 503 703

(b) Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income 503 837

Total amount recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income 2,044 1,128

Liabilities assumed/(settled) 466 1,907

Benefits paid (646) (29

Closing defined benefit obligations 5.010 3.146

Current 110 67

Non current 4.900 3.079
Total 5,010 3.146

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:

Discount rate per annum 7.50% 7.50%

Salary escalation rate per annum 10.00% 10.00%

Other actuarial assumptions

Attrition rate

21 to 30 years 8.00% 5.00%

31 to 40 years 6.00% 5.00%

41 to 50 years 4.00% 3.00%

51 to 57 years 5.00% 5.00%

Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years

Mortality table Indian Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives

Mortality Mortality
(2012-14) Ult table
/%
Q&
&/
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Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as under:

Changes in assumption March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Discount rate

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on increase in 50 bps 4,694 2,952

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -6.31% -6,16%
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on decrease in 50 bps 5,356 3,357

Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 6.90% 671%
Salary increase rate

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on increase in 50 bps 5,301 3,335

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO 581% 6.02%
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on decrease in 50 bps 4,726 2,963

Impact of decrease in SO bps on DBO -5.66% -5.81%

The mortality and attrition does not have a significant impact on the liability hence are not considered as significant actuarial assumption for the

purpose of sensitivity analysis

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations.

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than one year 110 67
Between one and five years 784 459
After five years 14.489 9,300

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 13.19 years as of March 31, 2024 ( March 31, 2023: 12.86 years )

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

(i) Market risk

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount rate reflects the time
value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption
depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation
Aate

(ii) Longevity risk
The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or afier Typically for the benefits paid on or before the
retirement age, the longevity risk is not very material

(iii) Annual risk

Salary increase assumption

Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase to the obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.
Attrition/withdrawal assumption

If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption, then the benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this
will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
15 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of finished goods and materials 301.760 207.329
301,760 297,329
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 9,906 2,056
Other income 24 -
9,930 2.056
311,690 299,385
a There are no adjustments made to contract price
b. There are no unfulfilled performance obligations resulting from contracts
¢ There is no disaggregation of revenue (refer note 30)
16 Other Income
Liabilities no longer required write back 927 -
Net foreign exchange gain/ (loss) 5,090 1,417
Loss due to termination of lease - (1,639)
Gain on sale of assets 286 -
Interest income from financial asset at amortised cost 9,725 -
Gain from Mutual Funds investment 3,578 -
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 1,209 -
20,815 222
17 Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock 35,342 18,439
Provision for slow moving inventory (4.909) -
Opening stock (net) (a) 30,433 18,439
Add: Purchases during the year (b) 269,565 243316
Less: Closing stock 43,866 35,342
Less: Provision for slow moving inventory (4,505) (4,909)
Closing stock (net) (¢ ) 39,361 30,433
Cost of materials consumed 260.637 231.322
17A  Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Purchase of Stock-in-trade - 16.347
- 16,347
18 Changes in inventories of work in progress and [inished goods
Inventory at the end of the year (a)
Work-in-progress 9,602 12,165
Finished goods 12,846 2.380
Less: Provision for slow moving inventory (775) (5,705)
21,673 8,840
Inventory at the beginning of the year (b)
Work-in-progress 12,165 3,382
Finished goods 2,380 61
Less: Provision for slow moving inventory (5,705) -
8,840 3,443
Change in inventories of work in progress and finished goods |(b)-(a)] (12,833) (5,397)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
19 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 14)
Gratuity (refer note 14)

Staff welfare expenses

Employee stock option expense

76,566
6,528
1,541
11,089
1.748

46,023
1,269
291

97,472
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20A  Net impairment losses on financial assets
Loss allowance on trade receivables (Refer note 25)

20B

21

22

23

Other Expenses

Consumption of Stores and Spares
Opening Stock (net of provision)
Purchases

Less: Closing Stock (net of provision)

Consumption of stores and spares
Contract manpower
Power and fuel
Subcontracting expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Plant & Machinery
Buildings
Others
Legal and professional fees
Payment to auditors [refer note (i) below]
Plant relocation charges
Freight and forwarding
Management Fee
Rental charges [refer note 4(iii)]
Printing and stationery
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Communication
Bank charges
Loss on sale of assets
Provision for doubtful vendor advances
Balances written-off
Advertisement and Business Promotion
Miscellaneous expenses

(i) Payments to auditors

As statutory auditor:
Remuneration to auditor

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment [refer note 4 (i)]
Amortisation on intangible assets [refer note 4(iv)]
*Depreciation on Right-of-use assets [refer note 4(iii)]

* Depreciation of right-of-use assets includes an amount of ¥ 21,722 (March 31, 2023:3Nil) which has been capitalized and taken to CWIP

Finance cost
Interest expense on borrowings

Interest expense on deferred business consideration

Finance guarantee expense
Interect on leaco liabilitiag

Interest income from financial asset at amortised cost

Unwinding of discount on security deposit

Investment impairment
Impairment loss on investments

419 -
419 -
1,652 725
9.484 10,654
11,136 11,379
1.843 1.652
9,293 9,727
24,071 22,768
17,592 17,972
2,593 9,193
1,213 1,604
4,186 1,393
10,590 6,202
15,717 7,053

750 625
- 5,735
1,201 604
- 21,712
478 2,126
1,015 161
1,882 783
3,481 2,491
6,586 7,662
6,649 1,131
1,291 1,910
78 -
1,561 -
976 -
2,125 -
1,153 129
114,481 120,981
750 500
750 500
36,811 20,207
163 137
20,202 16.310
57.176 36,654
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
10,272 12,268
3,745 1,201
47,053 5,305
12,500 Q73
- (645)
- (1,980)
73,669 25,872
1.783 -

1,783
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24 Fair value measurement

Financial instruments by category

Particulars Level Category March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Financial assets

Non Current Investments - Cost 41,200 42,983
Current Investments - FVTPL 22,655

Trade receivables - Amortised cost 44,541 50,333
Cash and cash equivalents - Amortised cost 125,781 10,407
Other bank balances - Amortised cost 33,370 7.900
Other financial assets - Amortised cost 58,995 34315
Total financial assets 326,542 145,938
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - Amortised cost 638,206 81,337
Trade payables - Amortised cost 119,042 50,197
Other financial liabilities - Amortised cost 386,555 87,819
Lease liabilities - Amortised cost 596.056 183.213
Total financial liabilities 1.739.859 402,766

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

(a) recognized and measured at fair value

(b) recognized and measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into
the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemneath the table:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. These instruments are included in Level 1

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (derivative mainly forward contract) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3

There are no transfers of financial instruments between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year,

(ii) Valuation process
The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial

reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capilal creditors, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and liabililies are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature

For other financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to fair values

(iv) Investments
The Company accounts the investments in subsidiary at cost, in accordance with Ind AS 27. These investments are tested for impairment annually

(This space 1s mtentionally left blank)
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25 Financial risk management
The Company's business activities exposes it to a variety of financial risks such as liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company’s senior

management under the supervision of the Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and govemning the Company’s risk management
and have established policies to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. They help in identification, measurement, mitigation and reporting
all risks associated with the activities of the Company. These risks are identified on a continuous basis and assessed for the impact on the financial
performance. The below table broadly summarizes the sources of financial risk to which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

This below table explains the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manag

s the risk

Particulars Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, other Aging analysis credit ratings Diversification of bank deposits, Customers
bank balance, trade receivables and credit analysis, monitoring of credit limits
financial assets measured at
amortised cost.
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of borrowings facilities

Market risk - Foreign
exchange

Future commercial transactions,
recognized financial assets and

Cash flow forecasting, sensitivity analysis

Natural hedging for receivables and payables.

labilities not denominated in Indian
rupee

Long-term and short-term|Sensitivity analysis
borrowings at variable rates

Maintaining a judicious mix of variable and
fixed rate debt

Market risk -Interest
rate risk

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk where the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial loss. Credit risk arises from cash
and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables, other receivables and loans and
deposits

(i) Provision for expected credit losses

The Company’s financial assets mainly comprise of investments, trade receivables, deposits with bank and security deposits.

1) Deposits :

Deposits are classified under the A category having negligible or nil risk based on past history of defaults and reasonable forward looking information
Deposits comprises of mainly refundable security deposits made on buildings (leased premises) taken under operating lease. Since these are assets with nil

risk, the expected probability of default is "0%" and hence no provision for expected credit losses are made in the financial statements.

2) Deposits with bank :

They are considered to be having negligible risk or nil risk, as they are maintained with high rated banks and the period of such deposits are generally less
than one year.

3) Investments :
[t consists of investments in subsidiary. Management undertakes impairment assessment on an annual basis and based on the recoverable value of the

investments, impairment if any, will be provided for

4) Trade receivables and other dues from related parties

No significant expected credit loss provision has been created for trade receivables and other dues since the Company considers the life time credit risk of
these financial assets to be very low. Further, receivables are expected to be collected considering the past trend of no defaults and that the balances are not
significantly aged. For balances that management believes are credit impaired, full provision is made immediately

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

Particulars Total
As at April 01, 2022 -
Charge/(credit) to statement of profit -
Utilisation of loss allowance

As at March 31, 2023
Charge/(credit) to statement of profit
Utilisation of loss allowance

As at March 31, 2024

419

419

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk where an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amnount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company's treasury maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability of required funds.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows

(i) Financing arrangements
The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period at floating rate of interest:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities) 42,527 72,542
B. Expiring beyond one year (bank loans) 2.362.557 291,157

e O\ 2.405.084 363.699
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25 Financial risk management (continued)

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact

of discounting is not significant

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 12 months 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2024

Non-derivatives

Borrowings* 18911 619,295 638,206

Trade payables 118,822 220 - 119,042

Other financial liabilities 345,365 41,190 - 386,555

Lease liabilities 85,592 387.359 497.238 970,189

Total non derivative liabilities 568,690 1,048,064 497,238 2,113,992

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 12 months 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2023

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 33.172 103,336 136,508

Interest on borrowings (term loans) 20,114 65,706 - 85,820

Trade payables 50,089 108 50,197

Other financial liabilities 50,374 37,445 . 87,819

Lease liabilities 24.824 144,028 123,736 292,588

Total non derivative liabilities 178,573 350,623 123,736 652,932

*The amount of borrowings includes interest accrued and current maturities of long term borrowings
Market risk is a risk where the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency (INR). The risk is measured

through sensitivity analysis of probable movement in exchange rate as at the reporting period

The Company primarily imports materials which are denominated in foreign currency which exposes it to foreign currency risk. Further, any additional

exposure is continuously monitored and hedging options like forward contracts shall be taken whenever they are expected to be cost effective

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in 2 as against respective foreign currency are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
USD USD

Financial assets

Trade receivables 48,839 11,978

Other current assets - &

Cash and bank balances - -

Advances from Vendors 2,730

Advances from Capital Creditors 24.298 -

Exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 75,867 11,978

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 26,357 179

Term loans (Including Interest) -

Capital creditors 145,510 -

Advance from Trade Receivable 43.631 -

Exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 215,498 179

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets - liabilities) (139.631) 11,799

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in exchange rates arising from foreign currency denominated financial instruments

is given below

Particulars

Impact on profit after tax

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

USD Sensluvity
INR/USD - Increase by 5%
INR/USD - decrease by 5%

(5,784)
5,784

489
(489)

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. L

Co

 —

Company's exposury&n _changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the debt obligations with floating interest rates

£
@
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC 129087

Notes to financial statements
(Al amounts are in 2 thousands, except shiare and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

26 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

A. Deferred tax recognition
Deferred tax assel on timing differences and on unabsorbed depreciation and business loss carried forward has not been recognised in these accounts in the

absence of reasonable certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available for set-off. However, this position will
be reassessed at every year end and the deferred tax asset will be accounted for, if appropriate. Deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2024 has been arrived at as
follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Difference between carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment in the financial statement and the income tax 1179 (329

retum
Expense charged in the financial statement but allowable as deduction in the future years under Income Tax Act, 7.426 893

1961

Unabsorbed deprecintion / carry forward of business lossés as per Income tax 67,003 35.617
75,608 36,181

Charge/(credit) As at March Charge/(credit) to As at March 31,
Movement to the statement Movement the statement of 2024

As at April 1,

Particulars
,2023
e of profit and loss pocs profit and loss

Deferred Tax
Asset/(Liabilities):
Property, plant &
equipment , Intangible (115) (214) - (329) 1,508 - 1,179
Asset
Right of use assets (1,337) (33.351) - (34,688) (66,147) - (100.833)
Lease liabilities 1,091 30,348 - 31,439 70.844 102,283
Employee Benefit 218 1.178 ; 1,396 2456 . 3,852
Obligations
Unabsorbed
Depreciation and toss 11,648 23,969 - 35617 31,386 - 67,003
carried forward
y rovision on ; 2274 2274 (1.259) 1,015
inventory

Other Items 77 395 - 472 639 = 1.111

Net Deferred Tax 11,582 24,599 - 36,181 39,427 - 75,608
[ Asset
Deferred Tax Asset Recogmised -
Deferred tax (credit)/charge for the vear * =

* Company has not recognised the deferred tax asset in the absence of reasonable certainly supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available for set-off.

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rute

Particulars

March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit/(Loss) before income tax expense (260,299) (177,138)
Tax at the rate of 17.16% for March 31, 2024 and 17.16% for March 31, 2023 (44,667) (30,397)
Expenses not allowed as deduction in computation of current tax 8717 1,192
Expenses on which DT not recognized in the current year - 4,663

35231 23,969

Loss on which no DTA was recognized during the year
Tax impact on loss incurred by Aequs Home Appliances (Refer note 35) . 794
Others 719 (221)

* Total tax expense/(income)

* There is no liability arising on account of current tax during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

unutilised based on the vear of otigination as below

C. "Tax losses in respect of which defermed tax asset has not been recopnised, expire

Particulars March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Within five years - -

Later than five years but less than ten years 331,950 178,163
No expirv 58.512 29,397

D. The Company has unabsorbed depreciation of Z 58,512 (March 31, 2023: 2 29,397) which does not have anv expiry period

E. Transfer pricing:
For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company would be carrying ut 4 ctudy tn camply with transfer pricing regnlations for which the preserihed certificare

of accountant will be obtained. In the opinion of management, no adjustment is expected to arise based on completion of Transfer Pricing Study

(Ths space 1s mtentionally left blank)




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in 3 thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

27 Related party disclosures

Name of related party and their relationship
Name of related party where control exists

Relationship Name of the related party

Ultimate holding Company . Aequs Inc, Cayman [slands*

Holding Company . Aequs Manufacturing Investments Private Limited Mauritius(tAMIPL) (till December 03, 2021)
: Aequs Private Limited (APL) (w.e f .December 04, 2021)

Subsidiary . Aequs Home Appliances Private Limited (AHAPL)

Relationship Name of the related party

Fellow subsidiaries : Aequs Engineered Plastics Private Limited (AEPPL")

. Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited (AFCPPL)

: Aequs Toys Private Limited,, India (ATPL)

. Aerostructures Manufacturing India Private Limited (ASMIPL), India
. Aerostructure Assemblies India Private Limited (AAI), [ndia

Enterprises in which individuals owning : Aequs SEZ Private Limited ('ASEZ"), India
interest in the Company, or their relatives | MFRE Private Trust, India
have control or joint control or significant ; Hubballi Durable Goods Cluster Private Limited (HDGCPL)

influence

Downstream investment of fellow : Koppal Toys Tooling COE Private Limited (KTTPL), India
subsidiaries

Key Management Personnel . Rajeev Kaul (Resigned w.e.f. September 29, 2023)

Dinesh V lyer
Rohit Mulki Hegde (Resigned w.e.f. February 27, 2024)
Radhakrishna Vuppunda (Appointed w.e.f. September 25, 2023 and resigned w.e.f. February 27, 2024)
Sudheendra Dwarpalak (Appointed w.e.f. September 25, 2023 and resigned w.e f. February 27, 2024)
Ravi Guttal (Appointed w e f. September 25, 2023 and resigned w.e f. February 27, 2024)
Suraj Hukkeri (Appointed w.e.f. February 26, 2024)
Vikas Goel (Appointed w.¢ f. February 26, 2024)
: Mehul Shah (Appointed w e f. March 25, 2023 and resigned w.e.f. March 28, 2024).
. Sambhram Pise (Appointed w.e.f. September 20, 2024)

(*) Aequs Inc. is 100% beneficially owned and controlled by the Melligiti Foundation

(This space 1s intenhionally left blank)




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC 129087
Notes to the financial statements
{All amounts are in < thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

27 Related party disclosures (Continued)

A. Transactions with related party

Name Nature of transactions March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
APL . Service received 4,900 637
Unsecured borrowing 15,000 24,000
' Repayment of unsecured loan 20,000 39,000
Interest expense on loan borrowed 155 2,570
Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 28214 46,785
. Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 367 117
Financial guarantee Received 460,666 27,668
: Financial guarantee expense 57,333 1,961
AFCPPL : Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 43 .
ASEZ : Service received 5737 839
: Repayment of unsecured loan - 7.500
: Interest expense on loan borrowed - 567
: Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company - 480
: Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 21 30
: Financial guarantee Received 59,229 27,668
: Financial guarantee expense 31,432 1,961
AHAPL : Investment in equity share capital . 40,001
: Impairment in investment in equity share capital 1,783 z
: Acquisition of business of AHAPL - 36,244
: Deferred business consideration 3,745 1,201
: Expenses incurred on behalf of related party - 114
ASMIPL Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 1,463 2,940
Expenses incurred on behalf of related party - 956
. Cost of raw materials consumed 623 .
HDGCPL : Service received 231,486 8,931
| Repayment of lease liability 8,234 985
. Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 21 -
! Interest expenses on lease liability 12,599 9,148
: Security Deposits given 44,899 54,430
ATPL Purchase of Asset 92 -
: Cost of raw materials consumed 32 -
KTTPL : Expenses incurred on behalf of related party . 33
MFRE Private Trust : Fair value of the guarantee financial received 900 1,050
: Financial guarantee expense 1,650 1,383
AAl : Expenses incurted on behalf of related party - 779
Rohit Mulki Hegde : Service received 2,128 1,200
. Expenses reimbursed - 230
IKC : Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 15 -

(This space 1s intentionally lefi blank)
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC 129087
Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in X thousands, excepi share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

27 Related party disclosures (Continued)

B. Balance as at the year end

o o™

Name Nature of transactions March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
AEPPL : Dues to related parties - 11
: Capital creditors - 801
: Dues from related parties - 759
: Trade payables ] 12
AHAPL Investment in equity share capital 41,200 42,983
Dues from related parties . 114
Deferred business consideration payable 41,190 37,445
APL * Unsecured borrowings - 5,000
: Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 4
Dues to related parties 34,459 40,692
Trade payables 4,485 616
: Dues from related parties - 117
Unamortized fair value of the financial guarantee 430,961 25,706
AFCPPL | Capital creditors 533
Dues to related parties - 388
. Dues from related parties = 1
HDGCPL Security deposit paid 99,329 54430
: Dues froin related parties 21 -
: Trade payables 12,735 10,375
: Capital Creditors 18,534 -
ASEZ : Dues from related parties 21 .
. Capilal advance - 64
Trade payables 984 666
: Unamortized fair value of the financial guarantee 55426 25.706
ASMIPL : Dues to related parties 4,250 2,787
Dues from related parties . 956
. Trade payables 623 -
KTTPL Dues from related parties - 54
AAl Dues from related parties - 779
IKC ! Dues from related parties 15 -
MFRE Private Trust : Unamortized fair value of the financial guarantee 3,305 3.558
Rohit Mulki Hegde : Trade payables - 476

Notes:

All transactions were made on normal commercial tenms and conditions
Please refer SOCIE for the corporate guarantees and personal guarantees extended to the Company by the related parties against the borrowings

taken by the Company

¢. All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash

A letter of continuing financial support has been received from Aequs Private Limited
e. There is no loss allowance for receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no loss allowances has been recognized during the year in
respect of receivables due from related parties

(This space 1s ntentionally left blank)




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087
Notes to the financial statements
(All amowns are in 2 thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

28 Capital management

29

30

31

32

Risk management

For the purpose of the Company's capilal management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves altributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capilal management is to maximise the shareholder vatue

The Company's objectives while managing capital are to:

(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concem, so that they can continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to other
stakeholders;

(ii) Maintain optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio and is measured by net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)

The below table depicts the Company’s net debt to equity ratio

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Nel debt 1,108,481 254,343

Total equity 1,876,891 260,233

Net debt to equity ratio 0.59 0.98
Note:

(a) The above ratio is calculated by considering the amount of net debt (including cash and cash equivalents). This is resulting in a deviation
between Lhe above ratio and the debt equity ratio calculated in Note 36. The net debt to equity ratio for the current year increased due to
increase in lease liabilities on account of new building taken on lease

C itments and ¢ gent liabilities.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(a) Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account net of advances and
not provided for :

(i) Property, plant and equipment 70,510 10,751

Total 70,510 10,751

below 1able:

(b) Contingent liabilities
There are no reportable contingent liabilities

Segment information
(a) Description of segments and principal activities
The Company is primarily engaged in a single line of business of contract manufacturing of consumer products. The Chief Operating Decision

Maker (CODM) is identified to be the Director of the holding Company, who plans the allocation of resources and assess the performance of
the segments. The Company's CODM reviews the financial information by considering the entity as a whole, hence the operating segment
being the Company as one single segment

The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers specified by location of customers are presented in the

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from gperations
In India 298,631 285,295
Overseas 13,059 12,034
Total 311,690 297,329
The CODM primarily uses the following measure to assess the performance of the operaling seg ;

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sepgment results (127.671) (114,612)

The CODM reviews the Company as one reportable segment, hence no further segregation has been done

(b) Revenue from major customers ire us follows:
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Customer Revenue % of total revenue Revenue| % of total revenue
Customer | 177.773 57% 242,204 81%

Note:
There are no non- current assets which are outside India, hence no separate disclosure given

Earnings per share

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total basic earnings per share attributable to equity share holders of the Company (4.65) (6.54)
Loss attributable to the equity share holders (260,299) (177,138)
Weighted averaze number of equitv shares used as the denominator in calculating basic 56.022,063 97.630.330

There is no dilution to the basic eamings per share as lliere no potentially dilutive equity shares

Ducs to micro and small enterprises
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC 129087
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in 3 thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

35

Common Control Disclosure as per Ind AS 103

Asseis and Liabilities acquired via business transfer agreement.

Pursuant to a Slump sale agreement dated November 30, 2022, the Company acquired business of Aequs Home Appliances Private Limited
(AHAPL) with effect from December 01,2022 . The consideration for this acquisition was INR 43,855 payable after two years from date of
execulion of the agreement. AHAPL is a subsidiary of the Company, hence this business transfer agreement constitutes a business combination
under common control as per Ind AS 103 and the Company has accounted this acquisition from the earliest date of common control, i.e.,
incorporation date of AHAPL August 9, 2021

The impact of this treatment is that the Company has recorded:

- the cartying value of assets and liabilities, income and expenditure of AHAPL from earliest date of common control i.e., AHAPL August 9,
2021 till the date of actual business transfer i.e., November 30, 2022

Below are the details of assets and liabilities acquired as on the date of business transfer-

As at November 30, 2022
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4,730
Capital work-in-progress .
Other intangible assets 187
Financial assets -
Other financial assets 19,530
Other non-current assets 16,475
Inventories 2,947
Trade receivables 1,566
Caslr and cash equivalents 475
Other current assets 2,816
48,726
Liabilities
Trade payables 3.562
Other financial liabilities 2,164
Other current liabilities 17
5,743
Net Assets 42,983

The bifurcation of income and expenditure of the Company and AHAPL reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March

31, 2023 are as below-
April 01, 2022 to April 01, 2022 to
March 31, 2023 November 30, 2022

Total as reported in

Aequs Consumer Aequs Home the Statement of profit

Products Private Appliances Private and loss for the year

Limited Limited ended March 31, 2023
Revenue
Revenue from operations 288.853 10,532 299,385
Other gains/(losses)- net (208) (14) (222)
Total 288,645 10,518 299,163
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 219,246 12,076 231,322
Purchase of traded goods 16,347 - 16,347
Changes in inventories of work in progress,
finished goods and stock in trade (3,044) (2,353) (5.397)
Employee benefit expenses 50,522 - 50,522
Other expenses 115,745 5,236 120,981
Depreciation and amortization expense 35,783 871 36,654
Finance income (1,907) (718) (2.625)
Finance cost 28.466 31 38.497
Total Expenditure 461,158 15,143 476,301
Loss Before Tax (172.513) (4.625) (177.138)
- Current tax - -
- Deferred tax (credit) - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the period (172,513) (4.625) (177.138)
Calculation of capital reserve As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opening balance (7,609) -
Movement during the year 870 (7,609)
Closing balance debit/ (credit) (6,739) (7,609)
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